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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Built im 1897, the Emporium is a late Victorian rectangular two-story commer-
cial brick building with original living quarters on the second floor and
sales room and offices on the first. A second story roofed balcony is distin-
guished by a series of four symmetrical arches which are repeated on the first
floor level. Eastlake finial details on the false front above the
balcony and in the second story archwork complete the ornamentation of an
otherwise simple structure. A newspaper article writting during September of
1897 indicates that the main sales room on the first stc story had ‘a "balcony
running around onh  three sides" and that "the front was lighter with plate
glass".® These features are still in place and the facade including the ground
flbor retains its- otiéinal integrity and -111wutk.

The baaenent 8 stone foundation and the back wall are in the process of deteri-
oration but remain original. Also, a rear balcony has been removed. Interior
changes are insignificant. The upstairs apartment and dance hall, the original
hall stencilling, and redwood wainscotting and molding are in the process of
being restored to their 1897 appearance. The building has a new concrete tile
roof, one entire side of the encircling roofline parapet has been rebuilt, and
three chimneys recapped.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Euporiu- has both architectnral and historical significance in the region."
This simple brick two-story commercial building is’'distinguished by an out- --
standing facade composed of a two story galléry and false front ornamented’
with good Eastlake detailing. The facade's double archwork- contributes-to the
structure's design integrity, and the building serves as a focal point along

a street of good but less distinguished commerical buildings.

A September 1, 1897 newspaper article in the Mother Lode Magnet documents the
new Emporium Building and states that "the new $10,000 business block erected
by J.W. Witney and Sons is with one exception, the Hotel Victoria, beyond
question the most imposing business structure in Tuolume County...C.H. Wilson
is the architect and builder; C.G. Witman did the tinning and plumbing; the
Central Electric Light Company furnished the electrical appliances. Taken
in all it is a splendid structure and reflects credit upon the energy and en-
terprise of the mapager, J.W. Witney." . ,

Historically, the Emporium makes an important local contribution to the region's
commercial patterns. The building served as a pioneer department store in
Tuolumne County and was recognized as dealing in the finest clothing and fur-
nishing goods in the county. J.W. Witney, its original owner, only occupied
the building for six months. Moses Areant acquired and managed the business
until 1928 when he sold it to Porter and Barendregt who continued the depart-
ment store until 1969. In addition, between 1906 and 1923 the Emporium served
as a telephone station for calls through the coumnty.

Architecturally, the building is an outstanding and rare example of its type
and period in Tuolumne County. In remarkably unaltered condition, the building
strongly exemplifies commercial architecture in the Mother Lode during the late
19th century. Its facade has unusual design integrity and the building makes

a significant visual contribution to the community's setting.
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Representation in Existing Surveys

Building included in Guide to Architecture in San Francisco and Northern
California, David Gebhard, et al. Published by Peregrine Smith, Inc.
Santa Barbara and Salt Lake City, 1973.



